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DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND OKIGINAL (IF KNOWN) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

The Thomas Richards house is located on the south side of U. S. Route 1, three
miles west of Rising Sun, Maryland. It is a stone and brick farmhouse nestled .in a
picturesque valley opposite the historic Richards' Oak Tree.

The house faces north and is set into a hillside, making it slightly taller on
the south elevation. It consists of two sections, the kitchen of fieldstone constructis
dating from the late 18th century, and the main block of brick construction, dating
Trom the early 19th century.

The stone section is 1% stories with dormers only on the south side. On the ]
north facade it has a 44" wide, six-panel door with five-Tight transom in the east !
bay and a window with nine-over-six sash in the west bay. The shingle roof overhan s ]
this facade several-feet, sheltering the entrance. A brick interior chimney rises ]
from the west end of this section. On the south facade there are a _ - .
door and window directly opposite those on the north. Two gable-roofed dormers with
six-over-six sash are situated above the openings on this side. A porch extends
across this facade, just below the sills of the dormer windows.

On the inside, -this section is one room deep and measures 18 feet wide by 20 feet
long. There is a large, cooking fireplace in the west end of the room, with eight-
foot mantelshelf and oven.. The west end of the room has beaded paneling, as does the
enclosed winding stair leading to the second story and the brick section. The bedroom
in this section has a small fireplace with a painted blue scroll design on the plaster
to simulate a mantel. This room has a beaded, pine paneled ceiling, and the east wall
is paneled, with four steps leading to the landing of the stairs.

The brick section is three bays wide, two stories tall and one room deep, with
garrett and basement. This sectijon is a half-story above the stone section due to_the
slope of the hill. The north facade has a six-panel door with four-light transom in
the west bay and nine-over-six sash windows in all other openings. The windows on the
north facade of both sections and the first story, south window of the kitchen have
paneled shutters. There is a pent roof across the north facade of the majn block
between the first and second stories. On the south there are nine-over-six sash
windows in all openings on both floors: The stone foundation is partially exposed on }
this facade. There is a small, four-pane window in the north side of the chimney-stackg
in both gables of this section. The brick is laid in common bond. (The fireplace on
the east end looks as though it may have been added later; the firebox and flue extend
out from the wall to the second floor level where the flue goes inside the wall.)
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The first floor plan of this section consists of a large room at the east end
of the house, and an entrance hall and smaller room in the west. The stair 1s located
in the center. (See floor plan.) The main entrance opens into the hall, which is
13% feet long and 4% feet wide. The south wall has beaded and tapered paneling with g
two steps of the enclosed stair exposed with newel and baluster. - :

The small room south of the entrance hall is the library. It has a large mantel
of simple molding and simple, beaded chair rail. There are two closets beneath the
stairs on the east side of the room. There is a small closet in the exposed (south)
side of the chimney.

SEE CONTINUATION SHEET #1.
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(DESCRIPTION CONTINUED)

' The large room at the east end is the 11v1ng room. The fireplace in the

- east end has a mantel with a band of reeding below the shelf and reeded pilasters flank-
ing the opening. The chair rail is molded with beaded band; the same molding is
repeated in the window flames. There are two doors in the west end of the room, one
at eijther end; the north one leads to the hall and the south one to a closet.

The central staircase in the brick section leads to an upstairs hall running
north to south with a window at each end. The width of the hall is five feet. The
hallways (both up and down) have ample mushroom pegs for hanging clothes. A large
bedroom is to the east of the hall and two small bedrooms to the west. The smallest
bedroom is presently a bath; the old partition was moved to enlarge the other bedroom
and make the bath. There are no fireplaces on the second floor of the brick section.

Floors throughout the house are original, random width oak downstairs and poplar

- upstairs (painted). Interior molding, woodwork and hardware is mostly original. When

necessary to replace them during restoration, nails, wood and hardware were purchased
. from other old buildings rather than using new or reproductions. Original paint
i colors have been matched. Electricity, plumbing and other modern conveniences have
been tucked into obscure places with meticulous care. The once dirt-floored cellar
and root-cellar under the brick section is the present modern kitchen, T.V. room and
utility room. Stone foundation walls continue to be exposed. This area is approachable
from the old kitchen by three stone steps and can be comp]ete]y closed-off from the
authentic part of the house.

The house is furnished with antiques collected with care specifically for it.
The Thomas Richards house is typical of an affluent farm of the period. It was built wi
solid construction, good taste, and with a modest pride. This atmosphere continues
today.

The only original outbuilding is the large stone and wood bank (three levels)
barn. It was built and enlarged during the early 19th century and remains in excellent
condition, continuing to be functional.
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The Thomas Richards house is important for the basically unaltered condition in
which it has survived, serving as an excellent example of the architecture of the turn
of the 19th century in Cecil County. Thomas Richards, builder of the house; was a
prosperous farmer and active member of West Nottingham Friends Meeting. He was also
involved in politics, serving as a commissioner of the tax. In his will of 1837 it
is stated that he owned shares in the Susquehanna River Bridge. Richards was a
successful member of the community and his house is ref]ect1ve of the solidity of his
position.

The restoration was carried out with the advice of Edward Plumstead of Rising Sun,
Maryland, and Robert Rally, architect and restoration consultant of Newark, Delaware.

Richards' grandson, Joseph Thomas Richards, was born in 1845 and became an
engineer. in Philadelphia. It was he who compiled the original genealogy, map and
Friends Meeting record that has preserved the family history. Dr. G. Hampton Richards,
another descendant; served the community of Port Deposit for many years in medical
practice and the hospital.

. - ot b » L. . .
The Richards genealogy in Ameriéﬁ%%%%ﬁjaoseph Richards, M.D., Philadelphia,
baptised 1620, died 1710. His descendants spread into Chester County, Pennsylvania,
and fifth generation Thomas Richards (1755-1837) migrated from Toughkenamon, Pennsylvania
to Nottingham, Cecil County, Maryland in December, 1795, at the age of. forty.

He settled on an original Nottingham Lot (#2) laid out by William Penn's survey
of Nottingham in 1702 and held by two Philadelphia landholders, John Guest and Edward
Benson. This tract of land south of the Octoraro had been sold to Willjam Edminston
in 1740 and was known as "Edminston Heights." This plantation of 373 acres, together
with all houses, buildings and improvements, was purchased by Evan W. Thomas of Harford
County in 1796. Thomas made an agreement with Thomas Richards to use and farm the land,
and on April 24, 1799, 200 acres of Edminston Heights was conveyed to Thomas Richards
by deed of 1ndenture. The purchase price was for 1,555 pounds current money of the
State of Maryland.

The property remained in the Richards family for over 130 years, from 1796 to
1927, when the farm was sold.

In 1928 US Route #1 was re-routed, severing the northern boundary. This is the
tract of.land where the famed Richards' Oak now stands. This huge tree, at first called
the Lafayette Oak (following the General's visit), 1s ‘a historic 1andmark owned for
more than a century by the Richards family.

SEE CONTINUATION SHEET #2.
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(SIGNIFICANCE CONTINUED)

A land deed as late as 1878 still refers to the area as Fdmunston Heights; howeve
- with the influence of the expanding Richards family the area was becoming known as
Richardsmere. The same area is now locally called Spready Oak.

The Thomas Richards house is not dated, but it is signed by Thomas Richards on
the plaster inside the cooking fireplace. The "rds" was quite smoked over as was any
other writing or date below his name. The Richards did not alter the house during
130 years of dwelling. From 1927 until 1942 ownership changed four times and
electricity and plumbing were added. One family owned the farm from 1942 until 1962
when the present owners purchased the property and .began an accurate restoration.
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The Edwards House is located in a deevp raviiae south of Route one
and acrose -rom Richards Oak, It is a small house ccmnosed of a 1&
2tory stone kitchen and a two story brick dwelling, three bays long and one
bay desr with Aoor occuvylng the westernmost bay, The brick vortion rests
on 2 store fonndation and is about thr-- feet higher than the stone norticn,
Tre brick is laid in co~ mon bond on 211 sides, there are 20 arches above
the doors and windows, there is an exterior trim around the exterior of thre
doors and a reces=ed jamb tc the door and a granite sill, Drive nintels in the
vindow frames indicate that there were shutters at one tine during its long
life, The stone vortion is twc bays long and one room deev. On the gable is
the remains of a bake ovem, The door occuvies the second bay from the west and
has a rectangular tramsom, raised vanel door with hand latch, The
south side has second story windows near floor level but the roof has bern gffé
extended on the north side, nroducing an owning over the facade, It is

presently being renovated by the owners,
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Thomas Richards House
Near Richarsmere
North Elevation

MOB/1968
NEG - MD, Hist. Trust
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